_ CONCLUSIONS OF LAW ¢
Based on the-record, the findings above, testimony and evidence

pfovided at the hearing. the court conctudes

A.

Jursdiction of this Court is propetly established and venue ts propeﬂy jald
in York County, South Caroling, and all pariies were, timely served with the

“Summons, Pefition and Nofice of Hearing.
It is well settled law in South Carolina that when a testator takes' possession-

of his Will and it cannot be found after his death, a presumption arises 1hc1t

it was deliberately desiroyed. m_&t_qu._{auls_eml. 52 SE2d 192
(1949).

. If the orginal will ccnnof be found there s a presumpﬁon it was

intentionally destroyed Gollnl v. Bolton, 482 SE2d 784 (Ct. App. 1997).

. The Petitioner presented no ‘credible evldence to ihe court to rebut lhe

presumption of Intenﬁonal revocation, nor any.-evidence the Will was
qccidenmlty destroyad or unintentlonally revoked as Is required to be
proven by clear and c:onvlnclng evidence In. order to rebut the
presumption defined in the Gollnl case.

. The Petitioner presented no evidence of the 2005 WiIll belng Inadveﬂenﬂy
lost or destroyed nor any e\_ﬂdenca to rebut the presumption sald Will was .

Intentionally l’BVDde

. The Decedent died wlthoul a WIill and had no children, arrd the Petitioner

is his sole helr.

. The Decedent's inteslucy renders mool the Respondeni’s petﬂion for t’na

omitted spouse share.

. Even If the Court were to rule on the omitted spouse lssue thére. was no

credible evidence presented fo the Court that the Decedent provided for
his spouse outside of the Will or In lleu of a tasidmentcm/ disposition.

_#jv'f‘?'

Matiox Order Paga 3014
2016-ES-45-01230

Exhibit "A" <

RoA 20

App 154

_ ¢L9E09FdOBTOZH#IASYD - SY31d NOWIWOD - YHOA - WY 0F:6 ET UNC 6T0Z - Q37114 A1TVOINOHLO33

141



I. There being no evidence presented by the Pefifioner as fo the -

unintentional revocation of the 2005 Will and no evidence the Decedent
provided for his wife in lleu of a testamentary disposition and ouislde of
the Will should one exist, | find that the Petitioner qualifies for relief unders.
/C. Code Ann. 62-1- 111 which allows the court to’award attomey's fees
and costs as Justice and equity may require, inciuding reasonabla
attorney's fees.

J. The Petitioner shall pay one—half {$3 750.00) of the aftomey's fees of

Respondent (one-half of $7,500 00) as: a result of Pefitionier's failure to

provide any credible preof of his allegations..
IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED that the Decedent died intestate without chlldren. .

leaving his spouse as his sole helr. Pefitioner's raques1 to restraln the Personal

Representative from exercising her powers and the Petition for appointment as .

Personal Representative are ‘denled. The Petitioner Is ordered to remit the sum
of $3.750. .00 to the Responclent as payment of one-half (1/2) of the attomey's

* fees Incuired In this rr_\aﬁar )
CAulun WLW@

Carolyn W. Rogers w/ o
Judge of Probate, YorCounty, SC
fwow \

York, South Carolina
September 26, 2017.
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. LAST WILL AND TESTAMENT
~ OF
JONATHAN RAY MATTOX

STATE OF GEORGIA: -
COUNTY OF GWINNETT

LJONATHANRAYMATTOX,ofﬁmsaIdmtymdm,bemg of sound and
disposing mind and memory, do hereby make and publish this my Last Will and Testament,
hereby revoking all other Wills and Codicils heretofore made by me.

) .

ITEM1

1 wish my body buried in a suitable manner and a suitable memorial erected and lhcoosts
thereof paid out of my estate. .

I direct that all of my legal debts bcpaidomofm};esmﬁasmasptmﬁmble.

 IIEMI -
1 give. bequesth and devise all of my property, both real and personal, of whatever kind
and wheréver situated to my brother, DAVID JAMES MATTOX, in fee simple and forever,
per stirpes. As for my brother, MARK ANTHONY MATTOX, I have intentionally made no

provision for said brother hereunder and I purposefully excludehunas abmeﬁmmbmumder
for personal reasons. e . ¥ '

mEMI -

Should my brother. DAVID JAMES MATTOX, predecease me leaving'no lineal
descendants. then I give, bequeath and deviaeautﬁemmmmdmfmyw of
whatever kind and wherever situated to my mother, PEGGY YVONN]!,‘ MATTOX, in fee
simple and forever per stirpes.

n
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OEMIV . -

I give, bequeath and devise ll the rest, residue and remsinder of my property of cvery |
kmdanddmnpnon.andwhcreve:located.mcludmganylapsedorvmdlmcyordewsetoﬂw S
persons who would have been entitled thereto under the laws of descent and distribution of the
State of Georgia if I had died intestate at that time owning such property in fee simple.

IIEMV
hereby constitute and appoint my mother, PRGGY YVONNE MATTOX, as Execuzor
of this Will, relieving her of the necessity of making returns or giving bond to any court, and I
specifically empower her to sell any and all of my pmpetty at public or private sale, with or |
without notice, mdvnthoutordcrofmyoom,fonhcpmpcseofpamdebtsofmyestnteor
carrying out the provisions of this Will.

ITEM VI :
In the event my mother. PEGGY YVONNE MATTOX, shall predecease me or fiil to
serve as Executrix of this Will, then and in that event I name and appoint my brother, DAVID
JAMES MATTOZX. as Executor of this Will. ‘

In the management, care and disposition of my estate and any trust created hereunder.
I confer upon the Executrix and the survivors and successors in office, the power to do all things
mcach instance as may be, mt}rsolcdlscreuonofmyﬂxecutnx,mxy proper or
adv:sable) including the powers contained in 0.C.G.A., § 53-12-232, as they now exist, that is.
as such powers may have been amended up to and through the date of execution of this Will,
which powers are expressly incorporated into this Will by reference, with the same effect as
thonghmch!angmg:wrremforthmbaﬁmh:rcm
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IN WITNESS HEREOF., I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my seal to this my
Last Will and Testament consisting of 3 pagm,includingﬂﬂspage.idmﬁﬁnblébymysignnhm
or initials, ' ;

S B

1tness
Witness 55
Swom to and subscribed before me byJONATHAS YMATI'OX,&;ldswomto
and subscribed before me by Stacedy Brow— and Jushin _ Skacas | witnesses,
this \ T day ofﬁm.a.%_. 2005. P o

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Bxpin:s:.
-2 Q7]

3
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- BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared
JONATHAN RAY MATTOX, STACY Brown ong Tvehin S¥aga S vooum
'mmcmbemeTMrmdmewimmes,rupwﬁvdy.whosemmpmbsm‘bedmme
annexed or foregoing instrument in thair_respecﬁve‘upacitics. and, all of said peisons being by
. me duly swom. JONATHAN RAY MATTOX, declared to me and to the said witnesses in my
presence and that said instrument is his Last Will and Testament and that he had willingly made
and executed it as his free act and deed for the purpose therein expressed. The witnesses, each
onhisorhnoaﬂxmdt&mcmmcméndhmingofﬁmedmtthemha@

 declared to them that the instrument is his Last Will and Testament and that he execated same

assuchandwantsdeachofﬂmmtoaignitasqwimess;éndnpoqhisorheroaﬂlmch.wm
stated further that he or she did sign the same as a witness in the presence of the Testator and

at his request; that he or she was at that time fourteen (14) years of 4ge or over and was of sound

mind; and that each of said witnesses was then at least fourteen (14) years of age.

Witneas

Witness ' )

Swomn to'and subscribed before me by JONATHAN RAY X, arid swom to
and subscribed before meby STACeY Bvwin _ andJvi No § Ka44s | witnesses,
this { T dayof __ felrvarg . 2005. . D

Canhns Jmgh b

NGTARY PUBLIC

L}

My Commission Expires:
19 ° 22-27]
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ELECTRONICALLY FILED - 2019 Jun 13 9:40 AM - YORK - COMMON PLEAS - CASE#2018CP4603672

it Re

st Wil

. iaﬁg_i . )
@%@g I
. {sinmvri., o . |

JONATHAN RAY MATTOX

NELSON H. TURNER
ATTORNEY AT LAW
FIVE HURRICANE SHOALS ROAD
LAWRENCEVILLE, GEORGIA 30043
(770) 962-8111

14

RnA 76

App 160



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF YORK

In the Matter of JONATHAN MATTOX,
DAVID J. MATTOX,

IN THE PROBATE COURT

et ppetad b

PROBATE CASE FILE No. 2016-ES-46-01230

]
)
] AFFIDAVIT
Petitioner, ] X
vs. 1 IN SUPPORT OF MOTION
]
LISA JO BARE MATTOX, %
Respondent. %
. PERSONAILYappearedbefmeme,anutmypubliq&eundemgmdafﬁaanhobemg
duly sworn, deposes and says that:

1.

I am Peggy M. Mattox. I am the mother of the late JONATHAN RAY MATTOX and of
DAVID J. MATTOX. I live at 218 Shme[.inej]ﬁve,TuwnofPMey’sIsiantheorgemwn
County, South Carolina,
IknmmyanDNmmNRAYMAITOXhadﬂmmedawﬂLImwﬂmMsm:ktheday
it was executed. I did not see it again until the events described below.

ﬂmngtheﬂl;gaﬁmbﬂwemDAVﬂ)J.MATIﬂXandﬂSAIOBAREMKﬂUXabove,ﬁn.

onemmmedmeaboutmelocaﬂonofJONAIHANRAYMATIQX’wﬂL Had anyone done
so, I would have had no information to give them.

In or about October, 2017, 1 bought a new car. I!henloukedmtoselltngmyoldcar,whmh
wasthenl?yeatsold.
IwentinmmysafetoﬁndtheﬁﬂetothaoldcanWhﬂzlmkingfartheﬁﬂe,Ifoundﬂm
original will of JONATHAN RAY MATTOX in my safe, .

Until I found this document, I had no knowledge of its presence in my safe. I very seldom
use my safe or go into it.

JONATHAN RAY MATTOX, DAVID J. MATTOX and I kinow the location of the
combination to my safe. IcanonlyspeaﬂateﬂmJONAIHANRAYMATrOXplamdit
therebecansethewillmmedmeaspetsonalliepmsemmve

No one had told me the will had been placed in the safe.
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9. Upondiscnveringthewi]],lcomaaedmysonDAva.MATI‘OXandgnvetheoriﬁ:flm
him. ' .

mﬂ“ﬂ(”

!,?,,,

\\\

SWORN T8 and subscribed before me y‘%c,i _____

2 [l
C.

! Nﬁ
; ”"ﬁmnm'-\“

'.:[-;:c,?"l )

4
g
é
SoH
S W .~
58 5\
L=
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Jun 26 2020
DAVID J. MATTOX vs L1sA Jo BARE MaTTOX S0 Court of Appeals
Hearing on 10/05/2017 Page'6

1 support of our opposition with attached case law, if you'd

like.
MR. FOSTER: Would you like to receive that

at this time?

(S B S " B -

THE COURT: Sure. We’ll just go ahead and
6 hand up the whole thing. Obviously, they’re not going to be
7 read during this hearing.

8 OPENING STATEMENT BY MR. FOSTER CONTINUES:

9 MR. FOSTER: The first issue we discussed in
10 our brief, ma‘'am, is whether this issue is res judicata. We
11 maintained this is a situation where the issue was raised -
12 well, let me go back a step. Assuming that the will we have
13 given you timely is what it seems to be, the question still
14 arises whether we have any right to make a claim given the
15 fact that Ms. Mattox would be an omitted spouse. That is to
16 say Mr. Jonathan Mattox married her after the execution of
17 the will. The will makes no reference to her and it makes no
18 provision directly as to what would to happen were he to
19 marry later. So, the first question would be whether this
20 matter is res judicata as to that issue. We maintain to the
21 Court that this issue was raised in the original order and
22 indeed arquably in the original action, but was not ruled
23 upon. We based that upon the language of the Court, which
24 states in the order of September 2017, that I referenced, and

25 I'm hoping I can find it right here. Um, even if the Court

www.huseby.com Huseby, Inc. Regional Centers 800-333-2082
Charlotte ~ Atlanta ~ Washington, DC ~ New York ~ Houston ~ San Francisco
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DAVID J. MATTOX vs LISA JO BARE MATTOX
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1 were to rule on the omitted spouse issue, there was no
credible evidence presented to the Court, etcetera, etcetera.

While I appreciate the fact that a Court, or may I be

= W b

allowed, an attorney writing for the Court if that was the

case, may use subjunctive mode. That is not a ruling. That

wu

is a statement about were I to do X, then Y would be the
case. We've cited the language from the Supreme Court of

Ohio, as well as early cases from South Carolina and the

o o 3 o

United States Supreme Court about the effect of what is or is
10 not res judicata. The Ohio Supreme Court facing a similar

11 situation has held, *When judgment of a court is not

12 dispositive issues which a party later seeks to litigate res
13 judicata is not applicable. This is true even if the prior
14 court decision has discussed the issues that is a subject of
15 the current litigation”, which of course in this case it

16 would be. So, assuming, ma’am, that we are not de- we are

17 not precluded by res judicata, what then must we prove to go
18 forward or to go to trial? There is no question that §62-2-
19 301 requires us to prove either A, that the omission from the
20 will of the later married spouse was intentional, which we

21 don’t maintain, or that that testator provided for the spouse
22 by transfer outside the will and the intent of the testator
23 is shown by his statements or from the amount of a transfer
24 or other evidence. That is precisely what we contend. We

25 have set forth in our brief what we understand to be the

www.huseby.com Huseby, Inc. Regional Centers 800-333-2082
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DAVID J. MATTOX vs LISA JO BARE MATTOX

Hearing on 10/05/2017 Page 8

1 case. We have attached a deed, executed in June 9 - June

2 29th, 2015 by which Mr. Jonathan Mattox’s aunt transferred to
3 himself and the Respondent, a resident - her residence as

4 joint tenants of right of survivorship. To the extent I'm

5 allowed to say so to the Court as an officer, we have not

6 provided an affidavit, but I was ensured by the trustee for

7 the grantor, Nancy Mildred Hayes, that this was done at the

8 request of the deceased. So, her name was put down as joint
9 tenant with right of survivorship. We’ve attached that deed.
10 Um, on his death, the house passed to her. Now, at this

11 point, I must confess to a mistake, which I hope the Court

12 can forgive. I made a big thing - or I made a notice of the
13 fact that Ms. Mattox - Mrs. Mattox did not list this in her
14 inventory and appraisement. Under the modern terms of

15 inventory and appraisement, as I read it, she is not required
16 to list it. I was relying upon the older language, at least
17 as I remembered it. It was, however, unlisted. We've

18 attached documentation showing that the residence was valued
19 by the County of York at $395,000. I believe the Court may
20 take judicial notice, and I do assert to it, that tax values
21 in this county, as in most counties, is low and therefore we
22 believe that we can suitably state that this residence, which
23 passed to Ms. Mattox without our knowledge any consideration
24 on her part, other than her spouse - spousal situation, um,
25 was therefore gratuitous. We believe that with discovery,

www.huseby.com Huseby, Inc. Regional Centers 800-333-2082
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DAVID J. MATTOX vs LISA JO BARE MATTOX

Hearing on 10/05/2017 Page 9
1 other property may be discovered and that is what we ask to
2 do in this case. Now, as I understand it, my opponents spent
3 a good bit of time discussing Rule 60 and I wish to go into
4 that. Rule 60, in my opinion, specifically allows for this
5 by allowing us to come forward where there has been a mistake
6 or where there has been newly discovered evidence. I would
7 suggest to the Court that this is a classic example of newly
8 discovered evidence, if it ever existed. I‘m not going to
9 argue those points, but I ask the Court if it would have the
10 patience to let me respond. We require also to be able to
11 show that we have a meritorious defense or claim. That’'s
12 what I‘ve attempted to set forward in going through the
13 property that was transferred, that we know that was
14 transferred to Ms. Mattox gratuitously. We believe there to
15 be other property. We’re not required to prove that we will
16 prevail on that issue, but merely that we have set out a good
17 case, which if established at trial, will constitute a valid
18 claim of defense. We’ve cited the federal law to that effect
19 under the federal rules.
20 THE COURT: Are you saying other property
21 than what’s listed on the inventory?
22 MR. FOSTER: I'm sorry, ma‘am. I have to
23 ask ----
24 THE COURT: Are you saying other property
25 than what’s listed on the inventory?
www.huseby.com Huseby, Inc. Regional Centers 800-333-2082
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DAVID J. MATTOX vs LISA JO BARE MATTOX

Hearing on 10/05/2017 Page 10
1 MR. FOSTER: We - it may be listed on the
2 inventory, ma‘am. We do not know the tittle to that
3 property, and therefore that, among other property is what we
4 seek to discover.
5 THE COURT: Okay.
6 MR. FOSTER: The federal precedent also
7 states that we have to state it with sufficient particularity
8 for the Court to determine that there is legal merit. We
9 believe that we have done so in setting out the in - the
10 facts as to this residence. We also state the fact that
11 under federal precedence, we have the right to a generous
12 interpretation of our attempted case. We cannot go forward
13 with that issue without discovery. Discovery is what we
14 seek. We believe that what we have in this case is a prima
15 facie case to reopen the estate, to pursue discovery, and to
16 see if, after that discovery is made, whether grounds exist
17 under the statute in question to allow Mr. Matt- David Mattox
18 to claim a portion of the estate. That would be again §62-2-
19 301(a)2. Ma’am, that is where we’'re at, basically. I will
20 be happy to answer any question and I defer to opposing
21 counsel.
22 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Foster. Mr.
23 Pierce and Mr. Gettys?
24 OPENING STATEMENT BY MR. PIERCE:
25 MR. PIERCE: Yes, Your Honor. We are going
www.huseby.com Huseby, Inc. Regional Centers 800-333-2082
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DAVID J. MATTOX vs LISA JO BARE MATTOX

Hearing on 10/05/2017 Page 11

1 to have a two-part argument. I’'m going to arque the 60B

2 argument, as well as the statutory provisions raised by the

3 Petitioner and Mr. Gettys is going to address our Motion to

4 Cancel the lis pendens, which was included in our response.

5 Your Honor, I believe the Court does have a sufficient

6 statement of the facts, so I'm not going to go through those.
7 The Petitioner has made a Motion for Relief under the

8 Jjudgment of Rule 60, specifically reciting 60(b)2 and 60(b) -
9 excuse me, 60(b)1l, 60(b)2 and 60(b)5, which we’ll address

10 those more specifically herein. Um, as a threshold issue,

11 um, there are two threshold issues. Um, the trial court does
12 have absolute discretion under Rule 60(b) to grant relief

13 under a judgement and the moving party does bear the burden
14 of proving the facts entitling (inaudible) relief. Starting,
15 um, with the statutory provisions cited, Your Honor, I

16 believe the only one cited in the - the actual motion was

17 actually §62-3-412(1), um, and it provides that if there is a
18 will that the parties are unaware of that could provide

19 grounds - that could provide grounds for reopening the
20 estate. In the affidavit, um, attached to the motion, which
21 I believe is provided with the Court, Paragraph 2 says, and
22 this is, uh, Peggy - this is Peggy Mattox, um, mother of the
23 decedent, what I understand. Paragraph 2 says, “I knew my
24 son, Jonathan Ray Mattox, had executed a will. I saw it in
25 his truck the day it was executed. I did not see it again

www.huseby.com Huseby, Inc. Regional Centers 800-333-2082

Charlotte ~ Atlanta ~ Washington, DC ~ New York ~ Houston ~ San Francisco

App 168

ar



DAVID J. MATTOX vs LISA JO BARE MATTOX

Hearing on 10/05/2017 Page 12
1 until the events described below.” I believe this is
2 directly in opposite to the requirements of the statute that
3 the parties were unaware that the will existed. Um, moving
4 to Rule 60(b)1, Your Honor, um, it does allow the Court to
5 set aside a judgement for a mistake, inadvertent surprise or
6 excusable neglect under (inaudible) 3888.C.301, which I
7 included in my packet. In determining whether relief under
8 60(b)1 would be granted, the Court must consider the
9 promptness was in which the (inaudible) reasons for the
10 failure to act promptly, existence of a meritorious defense,
11 and prejudice to a non-moving party. As far as promptness
12 goes, Your Honor, Peggy Mattox’s affidavit states that she
13 discovered the will in October of 2017 and turned around and
14 gave it to the Petitioner shortly, thereafter, meaning the
15 Petitioner has been in possession of this purported original
16 will for nine months before filing anything with the Court.
17 We would say that that is an obvious lack of promptness. Um,
18 there has - there has been nothing alleged to explain the
19 failure to act promptly. The entire crux of this case, Your
20 Honor, was the lack of an original will. It was found one
21 month after the final order was issued and it wasn’t raised
22 for nine months. There’s no reasonable explanation as to why
23 that would be the case, if it was in hand and it was
24 dispositive for them the underlying case. Mr. Foster
25 mentioned the meritorious defense requirement. I believe it
www.huseby.com Huseby, Inc. Regional Centers . 800-333-2082
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DAVID J. MATTOX vs LISA JO BARE MATTOX

Hearing on 10/05/2017 Page 13

1 means it’s a meritorious defense on the part of the non-

2 moving party or the party against whom the case is being

3 sought to be reopened. In this case, Your Honor, under the

4 Conclusion of Law in the Final Order, it is mentioned that

5 there was no credible evidence presented that the Respondent

6 was provided for outside of the will. We believe that

7 remains the case today and that the respond would prevail

under the omitted spouse statute, which is S.C. §62-2-301.

9 And finally, Your Honor, as far as prejudice goes, in the

10 nine months since the final order was issued to the time -

11 the entire time while the Petitioner had the will and was

12 sitting on it, the Respondent was entering into personal sale
13 agreements for particular pieces of property, as well as a

14 1listing agreement for property outside of the will, which she
15 got by a right of survivorship. So, by reopening this case,
16 she's being placed in jeopardy of being forced to breach one
17 or more contracts and that’s obvious prejudice to the

18 Petitioner [sic]. 60(b)2, Your Honor, to receive a new trial
19 based on newly discovered evidence, the moving party must
20 establish the newly discovered evidence will probably change
21 the result, has been discovered since the trial, could not

22 have been discovered before the trial, is immaterial to the
23 issue and is not merely cumulative or impeaching. That'’s
24 Southeastern (inaudible) Foundation vs. Smith (inaudible)
25 South Carolina 621, which is also included with our - the
www.huseby.com Huseby, Inc. Regional Centers . 800-333-2082
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1 packet we handed to the Court initially under Breen v.

2 Inegrity, which is a 2018 South Carolina Court of Appeals

3 case cited as 2018 West Law WL1937099. Um, belief under

4 60(b)2 depends on a presentation of the evidence that could

5 not have been found before trial with due diligence. Your

6 Honor, Peggy Mattox’s affidavit states that they knew a will

7 existed, they knew that - excuse me. The Petitioner, Pegqy

8 Mattox and the decedent all kneﬁ of the location and

9 combination of the safe in which the will was found. Um, a
10 safe is a natural and obvious place that people would keep

11 important documents, like a will. We - we believe that all
12 of that, Your Honor, shows that the - the original - the

13 purported original will could have been discovered prior to
14 trial with due diligence. And additionally, um, based on the
15 discussion of the omitted spouse statute earlier, we believe
16 the outcome of the trial would be the same if the estate were
17 to be reopened. Finally, Your Honor, under 60(b}5, South

18 Carolina Court of Appeals in Malarky v. Malarky has held

19 belief under 60(b)5 is available only in cases of fraud upon
20 the Court or in rare special exceptional or unusual
21 circumstances that may warrant equitable relief including
22 accident or mistake. I don’'t believe there’s been any fraud
23 alleged and I don’t believe a lack of due diligence in
24 finding an original will constitutes a rare, special,
25 exceptional or unusual circumstance. All that being said,
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DAVID J. MATTOX vs LISA JO BARE MATTOX

Hearing on 10/05/2017 Page 15
1 Your Honor, I do not believe the Petitioners are entitled to
2 relief either the (inaudible) Code or the Rules of Civil
3 Procedure. And I do hand it over to Mr. Gettys now to
4 address our Motion to Cancel unless you have any questions.
5 THE COURT: Thank you. I don‘t think I do.
6 Um, Mr. Foster, do you want to respond to that argument
7 first?
8 MR. FOSTER: Does the Court wish me to, or
9 shall I wait for Mr, Gettys?
10 THE COURT: It's up to you.
11 MR. FOSTER: Okay. Well, I will do so
12 briefly. First of all, with respect to Mr. Pierce who - a
13 good lawyer with whom I‘ve locked horns many times.
14 Apparently, I have confused him by my affidavit. Let me go
15 through this. The lady says she was not aware that the will
16 was there. She sold her car in October ‘17 and then after
17 that went to her safe. She did not say, and her affidavit
18 does not say, “I found the thing in October.” That is
19 conscious because she could not say when she found the thing.
20 She knew it was after the event. She could not say;
21 therefore, I did not seek to say it in the affidavit.
22 Secondly, we go to the question, I may be anticipating Mr.
23 Gettys, of the breach of the lis pendens. The lis pendens is
24 perfectly proper if this Court allows us to go forward and to
25 seek discovery on the full case. If, for whatever reason, it
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1 decides we're not so entitled, it of course, is
2 challengeable. However, with respect to Counsel, this is a
3 gituation solvable by either placing the money in the
4 lawyer's trust or by putting up a bond. In either event,
5 there is no harm recognized to Ms. Mattox and consequently,
6 my view is there is no issue there. The matter comes down to
7 whether this Court believes we are entitled to relief. That
8 would be my brief response.
9 THE COURT: Mr. Gettys?
10 OPENING STATEMENT BY MR. GETTYS:
11 MR. GETTYS: Thank you, Your Honor. Your
12 Honor, just because I'm a big picture guy I think more than
13 anything else. This is an omitted spouse claim. I mean,
14 that what this all revolves around is an omitted spouse claim
15 and if the will that’s purported original will were to be
16 found to be a truly an original will, the Court would then
17 entertain why that will would take away from the spouse’s
18 intestate rights of a hundred percent of the assets because
19 there are no children of the decedent. And so, we tried the
20 case, based upon the issues related to a copy of the will
21 being handed up by the brother of the decedent and had much
22 testimony at the time relative to the omitted spouse claim,
23 as well, and are prepared to do that again, if need be. But
24 the fact of the matter is that at some point after that
25 trial, this purported proper original will was located and it
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1 wasn’t until our client or my client had gone under contract
2 on two different properties, one a listing agreement, the
3 other an actual contract of sale, um, that this lawsuit was
4 brought - this second lawsuit was filed (inaudible). Your
5 Honor, once served with the lawsuit, um, to reopen the
6 estate, the question became, does the Petitioner have the
7 right to lay claim to a non-probate asset. You’ll see that
8 I‘ve just handed up an affidavit from Barry Mack (phonetic).
9 Up until yesterday, there was no statement by Petitioner’s
10 Counsel that the property was a non-probate asset. In fact,
11 in arguments prior to the filing of this request for a
12 hearing, the statement was made that because a deed of
13 distribution was recorded by Barry Mack (phonetic) that
14 somehow made the pro- the residence a probate asset, to which
15 we provided law, to which we went through and had an email
16 prepared by Barry Mack and sent to Mr. Foster in that regard.
17 The law is very clear on that, which we put in our motion. A
18 non-probate asset does not become a probate asset, a joint
19 tenant with right of survivorship deed, not shown on the
20 inventory and appraisement, as it‘’s not supposed to be, does
21 not somehow become a probate asset as a result of a
22 scrivener's error or a deed made in mistake as Mr. Mack
23 clearly acknowledges. It’s an ineffectual deed as it relates
24 to that piece of property. We can’t cure or make that
25 anything other than it is. A lis pendens for an estate
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1 action on a non-probate asset makes no sense. The effect of

2 a lis pendens on a non-probate asset, as you’ll see in my
3 client’s affidavit handed up, that is under a listing

4 agreement of sale, chills the sale of that property to any
5 third-parties. I'm not sure - until today, I thought that
6 the mother, Peggy Mattox, had found this original will

7 shortly after the - this Court issued its order, I did not
8 know until just now that it was sometime after that, but

9 regardless, that purported original will did not show up

10 until after the contract for sale of the residential property
11 was executed with a realtor and listed for sale. We have

12 requested repeatedly that that lis pendens be removed - because
13 it is not a probate asset to which this court would have any
14 jurisdiction, nor to which if the Court allowed for the

15 reopening of the estate, it would somehow become a probate

16 asset. It is not proper to lis pendens that property, period
17 in our opiniocn. We have provided an affidavit from both my
18 client and Barry Mack as to the statements that we have

19 shared, the law that we shared to our motion to Cancel the

20 1lis pendens previously served upon Counsel and we would ask
21 the Court to acknowledge that that lis pendens be picked up.
22 The second property is commercial property that my client has
23 under contract for sale. That contract also was executed

24 prior to the lis pendens in the bringing of this motion to

25 reopen the estate. That contract is a contract that the
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1 owner of the property properly entered into without notice of
2 any subsequent action that may come into, is under due
3 diligence, which is supposed to end by the end of this month.
4 This lis pendens on this property could cause us to fall in
5 wviolation of our contracted agreement with the purported
6 buyer of this, uh, commercial property, soon to be commercial
7 property. Here again, it was - it was entered - the contract
8 to sell that property was properly done, as my client had
9 completed the probating of the estate as she understood it to
10 be, entered into a contract as the owner of the property as
11 she understood herself to be and still believes herself to
12 be, and entered - and then subsequently, a lis pendens filed
13 on that. We repeatedly sought and Mr. Foster was
14 accommodating in conversation about lifting that lis pendens,
15 but it has not been lifted. There - that property is not a
16 probate asset to which even if they were able to prove that
17 this estate should be reopened and somehow prove that the
18 omitted spouse claims should be limited in some way, they
19 have no right to the property, they have a right to the value
20 of the property, the proceeds of sale of that property, as it
21 was under contract. The lis pendens again is ineffectual in
22 that regard as this - it was properly put - it was properly
23 put under contract as a non-probate asset and seeking to
24 reopen this estate does not change that ownership interest.
25 I do agree that in the event the Court should open up the
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1 estate, our client should not, or at least to her peril -
2 would distributing the proceeds of sale should it close, that
3 would be done at her peril. However, again, just because the
4 Petitioner or the Movant here before us says, “Well, we have
5 a properly prepared will that we believe suffices under South
6 Carolina law” does not - is not a showing, in and of itself,
7 enough, in our opinion, to reopen the estate. In order to
8 survive on an omitted spouse claims, the detriment of the
9 spouse, the Movant has to show that some kind of gift or
10 transfer of wealth was done in anticipating - excuse me, not
11 in anticipation, in lieu of will provision or in lieu of the
12 intestate share or will provisions that would’ve been proved
13 for the spouse. No allegations has been of that. All that
14 the Court has heard is Counsel’s belief that looking back at
15 history is this is what could’ve been intended, but no
16 writing to show up to do that and no furtherance or anything
17 to make the Court believe in good faith that there is
18 something there other than a fishing expedition. 1It’s as if,
19 just because I say it so, gives us ground to figqure out if
20 that be so or not. And we believe, based upon this Court’s
21 previous ruling and based upon the hearing that we had before
22 the Court before and based upon my client acting properly
23 based through the administration of the estate and taking
24 title to both, that there has to be a showing much stronger
25 than, *“Well, the trustee deeded the property - the
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1 residential property” which again is a non-probate asset to
my client and her husband because her husband said, “Please

3 do that” years before he passed away, without drafting a will

in any such way that would show his intent or put anything in

writing that would show his intent that’s been produced to

anyone that that asset was in lieu of any kind of

testamentary provision or intestate provision. What the

Court is being asked, in our opinion, is to leave lis pendens

o oo =3 oy ;e

on the property so that my client cannot protect her

10 ownership interest. For example, real world example; should
11 the Plaintiff, Petitioner or any family member show up on my
12 client’s probate property and cause a disturbance and have a
13 copy of that lis pendens and my client called the Sheriff and
14 say, “Get him off my property.” He could wave the lis

15 pendens and say, ‘It’s not necessarily her property.” Which
16 1is absolutely false. It’s absolutely false. It’s a non-

17 probate piece of property that she owns outright and by

18 filing improperly a lis pendens on that property to

19 intimidate or harass my client is only a way to get someone
20 the ability - or a party to get an ability to get on property
21 he has no right to be on otherwise. 8o, we would ask the

22 Court to order that those lis pendens be picked up so that

23 the assets can properly be transferred or dealt with as

24 previously contracted either sale or listing for sale. Thank

25 you, Your Honor.
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1 THE COURT: Thank you. Couple of
2 questions. Mr. Foster, do you have - do you arque with the
3 fact that that deed was a - a deed into the husband and wife
4 as joint tenants, rights to survivorship. Do you have any

5 consternation about that deed?

MR. FOSTER: No, ma‘am. My concern about

that is quite simply this and I hope the Court will allow me

mw 3 o

to be as blunt as Mr. Gettys. We have no knowledge of any of
9 this property being sold and I got involved with this when

10 this matter was solved. However, it may appear to

11 Respondent. However, within days after, and I believe this
12 is something admissible, within days after your Court’s

13 order, the Respondent received proceeds of 2.1 million

14 dollars from the sale of property that was in the estate.

15 That was to my knowledge also listed in the inventory and

16 appraisement. If this Court’s decision, if I may continue,
17 ma‘’am, if this Court’s decision is based upon its concern as
18 we acknowledge that the resident was not estate property, it
19 must act accordingly. My concern is this and it goes back to

20 my point about discovery; we don’t know what assets are

21 available in this case. We don’t know what’s been paid; we

22 don’'t know what’s been saved. We simply don’t know, and we

23 are asserting a cause of action, which should we be able to

24 produce the evidence to succeed to trial, which would allow

25 my client, if I understand the law correctly, one-half of
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1 those assets. On that basis, I don’t think, I at least, the
2 Court must act as it sees fit, I don’t see where I, at least,
3 can lift the lis pendens in good faith. We have proposed and
4 we again propose, a trust, an interest-bearing account or a

5 bond, as the Court may determine. I did wish to respond to

6 Mr. Gettys, if this is a good time.

7 THE COURT: Uh-huh. Go ahead.

8 MR. FOSTER: Shall I go ahead, ma’am?

9 THE COURT: Well, let me ask you a couple
10 of questions, first. So, Mr. Gettys has - is this property
11 under contract or has it actually been sold?

12 MR. GETTYS: Yes, ma‘am. On the affidavit -

13 well, I think, and I probably should say, there are three

14 tracts. There was one tract that was under contract prior to

15 the original hearing before this court and it sold, and those

16 proceeds distributed appropriately.

17 THE COURT: How is it titled?

18 MR. GETTYS: That one was an estate asset.

19 THE COURT: And it was entitled in the

20 decedent’s name?

21 MR. GETTYS: The decedent’s name. Yes.

22 (inaudible)

23 THE COURT: And I do recall that there was

24 a contract pending at that time.

25 MR. GETTYS: Yes, ma’am., That’s right.
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1 THE COURT: No, is that the property that’s

2 1listed on the inventory as the 26 acres?

3 MR. GETTYS: At least that or some portion

4 of that. Yeah, a portion of that.

5 THE COURT: A portion of the 26 acres?

6 MR. GETTYS: Yes, ma‘am. The remaining

7 portion of 26 acres is under contract and that contract is
8 attached to my client’s affidavit before you.

9 THE COURT: Okay.

10 MR. GETTYS: There is a third parcel and

11 that is my client’'s residence.

12 THE COURT: And that’s the one that you are
13 maintaining is joint with rights to survivorship.

14 MR. GETTYS: That is the one that we believe
15 to be joint - and I should say, Your Honor, you know, this

16 idea that there are other assets out there. You know, my

17 client prepared an inventory that’s the assets unless there’s
18 some showing that we’ve hidden something purposely from the
19 Court, it’s again this esoteric argument that we need

20 discovery to harass and intimidate our client is our

21 position.

22 THE COURT: And, um, do you agree with Mr.
23 Foster that your client received the 2.1 million in proceeds
24 from those asset ----

25 MR. GETTYS: Yes, ma'am.
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1 THE COURT: ---- from the sale of that
2 portion of the property?
3 MR. GETTYS: Absolutely.
4 THE COURT: And do you know where those
5 funds are right now?
6 MR. GETTYS: My client has possession or has
7 spent or has done with whatever she would’ve done with her
8 property. You still have all that (inaudible)
9 MS. MATTOX: I received $526,000 of my
10 husband’s (inaudible) from my proceeds. Peggy Mattox
11 received some, David Mattox received some and Jonathan ----
12 THE COURT: So that was owned ----
13 MS. MATTOX: That was joint.
14 MR. GETTYS: Yes, ma’am.
15 MS. MATTOX: The 2.1 million was the joint
16 between the three parties.
17 MR. GETTYS: Yeah, let me clarify that.
18 THE COURT: IT shows a hundred percent
19 interest on the inventory.
20 MR. GETTYS: That - that hundred percent
21 interest was a portion of a larger tract owned by others that
22 together was sold for $2.1 million with family members.
23 THE COURT: Okay.
24 MR. GETTYS: {inaudible)
25 THE COURT: So, he did, in fact, have title
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1 to the 26.055 acres?
MR. GETTYS: Of which he still retains

3 ownership of the unsold portion of the bigger tract sold for

4 that $2.1 million. Yes, ma'’am.

5 THE COURT: But I guess my question is,

6 there’s still something left of this 26.055 acres?

7 MR. GETTYS: Under contract before you; yes,
8§ ma’am.

9 THE COURT: Okay. All right. All righty.

10 But again, I go back to you, Mr. Foster, do you have any

11 argument, or do you contend that the residence is not joint
12 with rights of survivorship?

13 MR. FOSTER: No, ma‘am. It is joint tenants
14 with rights of survivorship.

15 THE COURT: Okay.

16 MR. FOSTER: And if that is the Court’s

17 decision as to its disposition, that is what the Court must
18 do. My position on that is what we attempted to state

19 earlier.

20 THE COURT: Right. I understand. All

21 right. Go ahead. I believe you had another argument you

22 wanted to make. Mr. Foster, I believe you had another

23 argument you wanted to make?

24 MR. FOSTER: Briefly, I made my point about

25 the intent of the Petitioner in this matter. I would make
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1 the point that I do not understand the proof that we must
2 give to this Court under the probate court statute in
3 question requires us to prove that the property in question
4 that was distributed away gratuitously was estate property at
5 the end. It’s merely enough to say that it was given away.
6 Now, I grant the fact that there is a distinction to be made
7 if at this point, we claim the right to put a hold on it.
8 That is up to the Court. I am concerned about the fact that
9 'we are hearing, Your Honor, arguments about what could cause
10 a default or what the Sheriff might do. I defer to Mr.
11 Gettys who certainly has more knowledge of these things
12 possibly than I do, but I question as to what extent this can
13 considered to be evidence as considered by this Court. Our
14 position is what I attempted to state earlier. We have made
15 a prima facie case to open this matter to take evidence and
16 to move forward. If at the end of it or even after the
17 discovery, we discover that there’s no basis for this, I can
18 assure this Court that no one will be quicker than me to
19 acknowledge that fact. But in effect, what Mr. Gettys wants
20 to do, with respect, is to cut us off right now before any of
21 that gets done. We don’t believe that to be proper and we
22 ask the Court for relief.
23 THE COURT: Let me ask you this question.
24 Did your client receive any of the $2.1 million proceeds in
25 the sale of this property?
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1 MR. FOSTER: I don’t think so. No, ma’am.
2 THE COURT: I'm just asking the question.
3 Idon't ----
4 MR. FOSTER: I don’'t know. Mr. Gettys
5 closed the thing. He would be able to say more than I.
6 THE COURT: All right. Mr. Gettys, do you
7 have ----
MR. GETTYS: Your Honor, my law partner did.
9 I'm not very familiar with it, but I do believe I ----
10 MS. MATTOX: David received a couple of
11 hundred thousand and his mom received about a million.
12 THE COURT: Okay. And you're not under
13 oath yet.
14 MR. GETTYS; Yes, ma'am.
15 MS. MATTOX: Oh, sorry.
16 THE COURT: Are you going to be putting up
17 any {(inaudible) any testimony?
18 MR. GETTYS: I had not planned for
19 (inaudible)
20 THE COURT: Well, we're here on a motion
21 hearing, so. I don’t think you need to.
22 MR. GETTYS: Yes, ma'am. But if the Court -
23 ---
24 THE COURT: I don’t want to hear anything
25 that’s not sworn testimony.
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1 MR. GETTYS: Um, he - my understanding is
2 each of the family members, my client’s deceased husband
3 being a family member, the Mattox family, owned portions of a
4 larger tract that their great aunt and father had owned and
5 of those portions, there was amalgamation of several parcels
6 to create one, uh, saleable piece and that’s - different
7 owners of that saleable piece did get cﬁshed out, which I
8 believe the Petitioner in this case was one of those parties.
9 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
10 (background)
11 THE COURT: All right. Mr. Foster, would
12 there be any issue or heartburn on behalf of your client if
13 this sale were to go through and the proceeds were just
14 escrowed until a ----
15 MR. FOSTER: That’s what we proposed.
16 THE COURT: ---- a result of the, uh ----
17 MR. FOSTER: That is what we proposed.
18 THE COURT: Outcome (inaudible)
19 MR. FOSTER: One of the things we propose.
20 THE COURT: Okay. What do you have to say
21 about that, Mr. Pierce or Mr. Gettys?
22 MR. GETTYS: Your Honor, as to the
23 residential property ----
24 THE COURT: I'm not talking about the
25 residential property, I'm talking about the other.
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1 MR. GETTYS: Yes, ma‘am. We need the
proceeds of the residential to buy a new house, so we could

3 not agree or consent to that.

4 THE COURT: Uh-huh.

5 MR. GETTYS: As to the commercial property,
6 again, we don’t believe that the Petitioner has shown a

7 purpose to reopen this estate other than to find new assets,
8 but if that were the case, if this Court ordered those monies

be held in some kind of trust account that we - that the
10 Court had control over or one of the lawyer’s, we’d be

11 amenable to that.

12 THE COURT: All right. And you’re saying
13 that this is - what were you saying, that there’s a due

14 diligence period that’s about to expire or a closing?

15 MR. GETTYS: At the end of this month.
16 THE COURT: The due diligence period.
17 MR. GETTYS: The due diligence period

18 expires at the end of this month and has been under contract
19 since, I believe March.

20 JUDGE’S RULING:

21 THE COURT: Okay. All right. Thank you.

22 Okay. Mr. Foster, I am going to direct that Mr. Gettys

23 prepare an order lifting the lis pendens from the joint

24 property so that that can go forward. I think he's exactly

25 correct that that property is not converted into a probate

www.huseby.com Huseby, Inc. Regional Centers 800-333-2082
Charlotte ~ Atlanta ~ Washington, DC ~ New York ~ Houston ~ San Francisco

App 187



DAVID J. MATTOX vs LISA JO BARE MATTOX
Hearing on 10/05/2017 Page 31

1 asset just by virtue of these - this controversy. I am going
to - I haven’t decided what to do about ruling on the- the

Rule 60 portion of this and the 3-412 portion of this. I am

[~ N 7% N 8]

going to consider that. I do - I don’t know if y’all have

read the comments for §62-3-412, but it clearly states that

wu

these are exceptions to the concept of res judicata. So, in
- in my view there’s a certain equity involved when an

original will is discovered and going forward to probate that

Ww o =1 o

original will. That’s not to say that other claims cannot be
10 filed, such as an omitted spouse claim, but I - I'm not

11 saying that today, I‘m just saying that I‘m going to take

12 these briefs and - and read them and make a decision as to

13 whether Mr. Foster’s client can go forward.

14 MR. GETTYS: Yes, ma’am.

15 THE COURT: And hopefully that will be done
16 before the end of this month,

17 MR. FOSTER: Thank you, ma‘am. We can ask
18 no more.

19 THE COURT: So, that we can go forward on

20 other issues.

21 MR. GETTYS: Thank you.
22 THE COURT: All right?
23 MR. FOSTER: Thank you, ma‘am.
24 THE COURT: Anything elsge?
25 MR. PIERCE: No, Your Honor.
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1 MR. GETTYS: That’11l do it.
2 THE COURT: Thank you. That’ll conclude
3 our hearing.
4 MR. GETTYS: Thank you, Judge.
5 [END OF HEARING IN THIS MATTER]
6 [END OF TRANSCRIPT]
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THE COURT - All right, now, let's move on to the
case of Mattox vs. Mattox. Who is the appellant in this
case?

MR. FOSTER - We are, sir.

THE COURT - Okay, Mr. Foster, give me one
second. I have all the case files on my IPad, if you'll
give me one second to pull it up.

(WHEREUPON, BRIEF PAUSE)

THE COURT - Yes, sir. All set.

MR. FOSTER - Okay, thank you, sir.

This is an appeal from a probate court order. I
was going to briefly recite the background.

THE COURT - Okay.

MR. FOSTER - I am not going to recite the dates
except the order, but if the Court ---

THE COURT - Yes, sir.

MR. FOSTER - —--- wishes, we can.

Mr. Jonathan Mattox signed a deed in 2005.

After that, he married Ms. Lisa Mattox in 2011. There was
a deed caused to be given into her on his behalf and hers
where they were designated as joint tenants with the right
of survivorship on a property valued currently by tax

value -- this is the record on appeal -- at three hundred
and ninety-five thousand dollars. Mr. Jonathan Mattox --

or I should go back and say -- in his original Will left a
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sole heir, his brother, David, no provision and no mention
of a wife. He died in 2016. No original Will had been
found at that point. Ms. Lisa Mattox began probate. Mr.
David Mattox by counsel filed a petition to be
substituted. All at that -- at that time all he could
come up with was a copy of the Will. The order of the
probate court at that time quite properly denied that
request saying that effectively under the law, you show us
a copy of a Will there's a presumption that the original
has been destroyed. In that order, the Court went on, and
I am quoting by memory, but I think I am being accurate
here, to state, if I were to rule on the question -- and
we can go on into it -- but of course what that refers to
is the language of 62-2-301, which refers to the
circumstances under which a spouse omitted from a Will can
still be held as bound by the terms of that Will,
specifically, if there's been sufficient provision made
outside the Will. That's 301(A). After that order, Mr.
David and Jonathan Mattox's mother, Peggy, found the
original Will in her safe. A petition was file under Rule
60 and under South Carolina 63-2-412 in July of 2018. We
had a hearing. The Court denied us the relief of
modification or reopening. We are appealing that order.

I am going to try to deal with the grounds that the Court

used to deny us that relief. First of all, the Court
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states in the order, which again is in the record on
appeal, that in 2017 at the original hearing, Mr. David
Mattox lived with his mother. Well, that's interesting,
but it was never brought up at the hearing in our case or
our part of it. It is not a part of the record anywhere
except in the Court's second order denying us relief.
That means, I suggest to this Court, that the only thing
it can be is a judicial notice. Now, obvicusly, any Judge
is allowed to take judicial notice of a fact, however, I
call attention of the Court to the language of Rule 201 of
our Rules of Evidence, which states under (E), Section
(E), a party is entitled upon timely request to an
opportunity to be heard as to the propriety of taking
judicial notice and the tenor of the matter noticed. The
first time we heard of this basis, the first time it
appears in -- or in the record, is in the order of the
probate court denying us the relief of reopening the case.
There's no evidence otherwise that this is the case. I
would hand up to the Court, if I may, among other things,
the case of Gibbs vs. Rose Hill Plantation from the
Federal District Court, basically, confirming Rule 201 (E),
and I am including another case, if I may approach, sir.
THE COURT - Yes, sir.

MR. FOSTER - Thank you.
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(WHEREUPON, DOCUMENT HANDED UP TO THE COURT)
MR. FOSTER - Extra copy for ---

Now, in addition to that, the Judge -- I believe
-— I -- I'm summarizing but I -- summarizing accurately,
basically, said, well, his mother should've been -- he or
his mother should've found the thing earlier. Well, ——

THE COURT - Can I just make sure I'm
understanding all the facts correctly?

MR. FOSTER - Yes, sir.

THE COURT - My -- my understanding is —-- the
order that you're appealing is an order on the
reconsideration of the probate court's order based on the
-- there was a -- I suppose an original Will was found in
a safe in the house on Pawley's Island.

MR. FOSTER - Yes, sir. Yes, sir.

THE COURT - And the probate court, basically,
said your client didn't exercise the due diligence that it
was an obvious place to look for a Will, and they can't
come back later and say, well, now, we've got the
original.

MR. FOSTER - That wouldn't be quite the way they
said it, but that's, basically, the fact.

THE COURT - Okay, I just -- it just says ---

MR. FOSTER - I understand.
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THE COURT - I just want to make -- you know,

want to make sure I'm understanding, so that's -- okay.

MR. FOSTER - And I want to be sure I state it
correctly, too. The petition was stated as under the
statute and under the cited stat -- statute I cited, as a
petition to modify or open.

THE COURT - Okay.

MR. FOSTER - We would first of all point out as
I say, there's no evidence of what the Court took notice
of. On the -- on -- the second thing we'd point out is --
we've handed up the case of Lanier vs. Lanier. This is a
South Carolina Family Court case heard before the Court of
Appeals, but it's a discussion of when and where you can
come in with newly discovered evidence and what that is.
The Court of Appeals in Lanier confirmed the view of older
Courts that you are bound to look for things timely, that
that includes people like attorneys, CPAs and so forth.
It is not state (sic), and I wish to emphasize this, that
it includes elderly female family members. It does not
state, includes your mother. Ms. Peggy Mattox, the mother
who discovered this, stated in her affidavit, which is
part of the record on appeal, that she had no idea that
the matter was there. She stated that she found it --
this is by inference, but it's in there -- after October

2017 when she had to go into her case, to her —-- to her
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safe. She stated that her sons, both Jonathan who died
and David who is the appellant, knew where to find her
combination. That is not to say they knew the combination
or had access to the safe. Our argument is under Lanier
and under the rules as stated therein, Mr. David Mattox
cannot be held responsible for the fact that he did not
immediately think of his mother and her safe as a place
where this was. That is the basis for our claim.

THE COURT - Mr. Foster, talk me through a
timeline. So when did Mr. Mattox die?

MR. FOSTER - Ms. Mattox -- well, Mr. Mattox died
October 1st, 2016.

THE COURT - Okay, and --

MR. FOSTER - The first order which denied relief
based on a copy and which represented, um, I believe also
held that Ms. Lisa Mattox, the wife, was the sole heir --
there were no children -- was issued September 26th, 2017.

THE COURT - All right, and when was the original
Will found in the safe?

MR. FOSTER - All that Ms. Peggy Mattox was able
to say in her affidavit, which is in our record on appeal
—-- that is on -- record on appeal page 27 -- was that she
sold a car in October, 2017 and some time after it
undesignated she found the thing in her safe, because she

had to go there.
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THE COURT - Okay, when was it first presented as

a motion or brought to the Court's attention?

MR. FOSTER - When we filed -- we filed in July
13th, 2018 within one year of the Court's decision and
certainly within one year of the Will being discovered.

THE COURT - Okay. All right, thank you, sir.

MR. FOSTER - Thank you, sir.

Going forward, basically, argument here as I
understand it in part is, well, it should've been
discovered earlier. Well, Ms. Mattox, Ms. Peggy Mattox,
said she hadn't been asked for it and had no reason to be
asked for it. She is not, in my understanding of Lanier
and the cases cited there under, one of the people that is
required by David to go look. She is not an agent; she is
not an attorney; she is not a CPA. She's not bound by Mr.
David Mattox or his employer, his employee, I should say.
Therefore, she's outside that area. The other rule under
Lanier is -- and the reason I believe in part they decided
the case it was -- because in that case the newly
discovered evidence was never entered as an issue in the
earlier case. 1In this case it was the issue. In this
case, as I say, that was where we were going from. In
Lanier, they state that the document has to be found,
quote, in the possession of the party for the Lanier rule

about how quickly one has to act and how expeditiously one
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has to act to apply. The document here was not in the
possession of Mr. David Mattox or his agents. Now, in
that regard, I call the Court's attention to the language
of 62-3-412. This is the other statute, the other basis
we used to go forward on our petition. That petition
states that they're going to allow a petition for
modification or vacation and probate of another Will,
quote, if it is shown that the proponents of the later
offered Will were unaware of its existence at the time of
the earlier proceeding, unquote. Existence is a nice
general thing. That can be read as saying, we didn't know
there was one, but it can also be read to say, we didn't
know where the original was, which is exactly what we say
is the case. I arque further that 62-3-412, being broader
than what we have in the rule 60 procedure, allows more
clearly the relief we're looking for. In this regard I
would cite to the Judge, the language in Lanier, which

we've handed up, that, basically, recites a long list of

cases, which as I'm reading here from page 461 -- it's
marked -- most of the cases -- they're referring to in
this -- they were asking for a re-trial -- most of the

cases sound inequity and were decided before the advent of
Rule 60(B). Well, if I may pause at this point, we're
maintaining that the earlier rule is maintained in 62-3-

412. It goes on, additionally all the cases cited
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existence of the lost document was alleged at trial, as
here. When the documents were found, the Court's held the
original documents themselves were material and were not
merely cumulative of other evidence as to their contents,
thus, retrials were allowed, pardon, merited. That
argument there has to do with retrials. We believe
they're directly relevant to the question here of
amendment and reopening. Basically, that's where we're at
with regard to the question of Lanier and the older
things. The other question, the one we spent some time
on, is the language of the Court ---

THE COURT - Mr. Foster, can —— if I can have
just one second. I'm -- I'm looking at the statute, 62-3-
412, and it looks to me that the paragraph one is limited
to the cases where there's already a Will —-—-

MR. FOSTER - Yes, sir.

THE COURT - --- and it -- because it refers to
another Will. It says the Court shall entertain a
petition for modification or vacation of its order if it
is shown the components of the later offered Will and ---

MR. FOSTER - Your Honor is referring —---

THE COURT - --- and then the paragraph two seems
to be the only time the Court will reconsider an intestacy
holding. 1Isn't that -- I mean the -- we're looking at the

probate court was that he died intestate. Right?
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MR. FOSTER - I hope I understand the Court's
question. My understanding is that paragraph one would
refer to the existence of a Will whether it was
unlocatable or whether it existed or whether it was

unknown to the clients. The only term used is existence.

Um; ===

THE COURT - But it says another Will -- I mean
it says a later offered Will, and then that -- so I mean
paragraph one refer -- I mean seems to be clearly talking

about situations where there was a Will, and paragraph two
is about intestacy; there's no Will.

MR. FOSTER - Sir, perhaps I'm reading the wrong
thing, but you're referring to a -- the reference of
another Will in the first paragraph?

THE COURT - (Indicating yes) The Court shall
entertain a petition for modification or vacation of its
order and probate of another Will.

MR. FOSTER - Sir, I'm quoting, and I'm possibly
incorrect, from 62-3-412.

THE COURT - I'm looking at it, too. Maybe ---

MR. FOSTER - For modification of its order and
probate of another Will, it would've shown the probates of
the later offered Will. Well, I would only say that I

don't believe that precludes the possibility of a
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situation of this kind where, basically, you have a Will

THE COURT - Let me stop you. I just want to
make -- it seems to me that the statute has one of two
stipulations. Paragraph one is where there was a Will,
and that's the order you want to be reconsidered, and
paragraph two is if there wasn't a Will. Isn't that the
scheme that statute sets up?

MR. FOSTER - Reading it that way would

essentially mean that a Will can never be found after the

event even under the best case scenario even under good

faith.

THE COURT - Under this statute.

MR. FOSTER - Yeah, if that's -- if that's our
reading.

THE COURT - But I mean it seems to me that it's
-— that their -- paragraph one is there was a Will but

you're challenging it, and number two is that the probate
court found there was intestacy and their provisions for
what, you know, ---

MR. FOSTER - I would not -—- I can only say I
don't think that's the intent of saying, quote, another
Will. In this case, of course, there was another one the
sense that we had a copy in round (sic) of the original.

The copy was thrown out; now we have the original, but I
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